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BRIEF ENCOUNTER

TT was odd; Holsworthy Square is generally full of

familiar faces, but to-day it seemed full of faces which
were familiar with a difference, not Holsworthy faces, but
faces from the past. 1'd just said, ‘Good morning ’ to
Mrs. Harris when | found one of them in front of me, and
| said, ‘Hello, I know you. Who are you?’ * Well, John,’
came the reply, ‘we was just wandering if you'd found
your bottle of beer yet.’

Now this bottle of beer was one which I took to drink
with my lunch on a Home Guard ‘battle * on Peek Hill
in 1943. Somewhere on the way up Peek Hill it disap-
peared ... and the rest of the Buckland platoon had no
idea how it could have fallen out of my haversack, but,
of course, that’s what must have happened. But ever since
then, if 1 meet a Buckland man, he is almost certain to
ask fondly after that bottle of beer. The fact that it
vanished 16 years ago makes no odds. At Buckland they
believe, very sensibly, that a good joke’s a good joke
always, and | have no doubt that if I don’t see Roy again
till I’'m eighty and he’s ninety-odd he will still ask whether
I've found my bottle of beer.

‘What are you doing here, then?’” ‘Ringers’ outing.’
‘What, Buckland?’ | asked. *Yes, they’m all in the cafe
over across.” ‘Well, what are we standing about for?’ I
said, and over across we went

And there they all were—the Buckland ringers whose
kind and patient teaching in call-change ringing had results
which made my Oxford instructress’ hair stand on end
when | came back for my second term of ringing. Jim,
the carpenter, whose shop | can remember since | could
hardly see over the top of the bench, and Dick, who was
once told by a Ministry of Agriculture inspector that his
bull’s head was too big, and replied, ‘ He’s not the only one
about here with the same complaint.” Will Northmore, of
Torr, with his straight back and his smiling, shining face,
.and Jim Northam, who keeps Buckland churchyard the
best in Devon, and Cecil and Horace; and Treble-man
Bray, who made Buckland ringing what it is more than
any other man, and taught me so much about striking.
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Resumed at_the CRRCE for 6d
transmission as a TNewSspaper.

Most of the clientele of the ‘Manor * had come along
as well for the ride, and quite a few from the ‘Who'd
Have Thought It.” Indeed, how many men were left in
Buckland and Milton Combe that Saturday is quite a
problem; not many, anyway.

Before long it was time to move to the tower; the bells
are just Buckland’s weight, except that the tenor’s a little
slower to get away, and apart from the tenor’s getting
under for a few pulls there was a nice rise in peal, Mr.
Bray, as always, turning to the wall to listen to the bells
without distraction. And then they asked me to take a
rope, and we had a peal of changes with the bells running
‘suantly ” and the striking beautifully even but with that
liveliness that is better than clockwork, and Mr. Bray
listening, listening always to every blow, never letting a
clip or a hesitation go unnoticed or, if not corrected next
round, unmentioned. Mr. Bray is a perfectionist; with an
ear trained by years of seeking for perfect striking he is
unsparing in criticising his own work and the band's; he
speaks his criticism without fear or favour, and those who
ring with him accept it gladly because they know that he
is as unfailingly critical of himself as he is of his fellows.
If the most exalted “top ringer ’ in the Exercise should have
the honour of a ring with Mr. Bray, he'd get some good
advice at the end of it, and he’d be wise to accept it.

While they had another peal of changes, | had to go
shopping, with an ear cocked all the time for the changes
tapping out over the rooftops of the Square, and then as
the bells began to come down and | knew Mr. Bray was
turning to the wall again in almost ecstatic concentration,
I came back to the tower and listened to the lower. Like
many Croydon bells, Holsworthy’s give their best half-way
down in a good lower, and the Buckland men made them
sing.

The lower brought the non-ringers strolling in from the
town, the ringers came out, hitching on their jackets, into
the June sunshine, and the coach filled up with its load of
good friends. And | set off home, thinking what a tolerant
crowd they are, these Buckland ringers; there aren’t many
who would suffer as gladly as they did the airy superiority
of a very novice °‘scientific ’ ringer, and greet that same
ringer ten years later as warmly as did they. Long live
Buckland! Long live the memory of John’s bottle of beer!

J G. M S
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EIGHT BELL PEALS

COLE-ORTON, LEICESTERSHIRE.
THE MIDLAND COUNTIES GUILD.
On Friday, April 17, 1959, in 2 Hours and 40 Minutes,
At the Church of St. Mary-the-Virgin,
A PEAL OF 5056 LONDON SURPRISE MAJOR
Tenor 13 cwt. 1 gr. 8 Ib.

R. Beniston .o Treble Ernest W. Rawson .. 5
Mrs. G. A. Halls 2 Peter J. Staniforth ... 6
*D. K. W alklate 3 Joseph W. Cotton 7
Francis R. Lowe ... 4 Derek P. JONnes ... Teno r

Composed by G. Lindoff. Conducted by D. P. Jones
* First peal of London Surprise Major.

PENKRIDGE, STAFFORDSHIRE.
THE SOCIETY FOR THE ARCHDEACONRY OF STAFFORD.
On SatmMay 17, 1959, in 3 Hours and 9 Minutes.
At the Church of St. Michael and All Angels,
A PEAL OF 5120 SPLICED SURPRISE MAJOR
In six methods being 1600 London, 1280 Rutland, 640 each of Bristol,
Cambridge and Superlative, and 320 Yorkshire with 110 changes of

method. Tenor 16 cwt. 1 qr. 21 Ib.
D. Mary W ard Treble “Anthony Ager ... 5
Eric E. Speake 2 ‘Peter Beresford ... 6
«Michael Ei.son 3 *Edmund Malin ... 7
J. Dennis Holden 4 Den sis Beresford Tenor

Composed by Albert J. Pitman Conducted by D. Beresford
"First peal of Spliced Surprise Major in six methods.

KENWYN, CORNWALL.
THE TRURO DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Monday, May 18, 1959, in 2 Hours and 57 Minutes,
At the Church of St. Cuby.
A PEAL OF 5008 PLAIN BOB MAJOR
Tenor 15 cwt. 3 gr, 20 |b. in F.

Peter ROWE . Treble Revd. A S. Roberts ... 5
V. Mary M atthews 2 William T. Cook 6
Cvril A. Wratten 3 C. Keith Brewer 7
Arthur F. Burley 4 R. A. Southwood Tenor

Composed by David J. Marshall. Conducted by C. A. Wratten

Rung as a compliment to Alan Carveth, President of the Truro
Diocesan Guild, and Mary Cork, who were married at this church
earlier in the day.

NORTHFLEET, KENT.
THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 2 Hours and 51 Minutes,
At the Church of St. Botolph,
A PEAL OF 5040 STEDMAN TRIPLES

Washbrook’s variation. Tenor 16J cwt.
Frederick J. Cuttum ..Treble | Geoffrey Pearson .. 5

Arthur G. Mason.. . 2 j Herbert E. Audsley .. 6
*Rev. J. Shepherd-Walyn 3 George J. Butcher .. .. 7
Otlive D. Couchman .. L4 | Peter F. Borer....auoo. Tenor

. . Conducted by George J. Butcher. .
*First peal in the method. The tenor ringer has now *circled the
tower.’

WHITWORTH, LANCASHIRE.

THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
(Rochdale Branch.)

On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 3 Hours and 7 Minutes.
At the Church of SS. Bartholomew and G eorge,
A PEAL OF 5056 PLAIN BOB MAIJOR
Tenor 15 cwt. 3 gr. 1 Ib. in F.

Peter Scholfield .Treble Allan Smith, jnr........ 5
Eileen Hudson .. .. 2 Phitip J. H. Hudson .. 6
*Barbara Foster 3 Michael D. Fishwick .. 7
*D avid Hodgson - 4 | Derek Butterworth .. Tenor

Composed by T. B. Worsley
« First peal ‘inside.’

Conducted by Derek Butterworth.
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THATCHAM, BERKSHIRE.
THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 2 Hours and 57 Minutes,
At the Church of
A PEAL OF 5056 PLAIN BOB MAJOR
Tenor 13i cwt.

«John W. T. Hibbert .. Treble Mrs. Dorothy R. Pearce 5
Mrs. Marjorie C. Hibbert 2 *William J. Irving .. .. 6
Stella Davis... . 3 Cyril J. Hibbert .. .. 7
Reginald W. Rex .. . 4 Arthur W. G. Sayers .. Tenor

Composed bYJ R. Pritohard. Conducted by Reginatd W. Rex.
* First peal of Major.

SUNBURY-ON-THAMES, MIDDLESEX.

THE ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS
On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 2 Hours and 54 Minutes,
At the Church of St. Mary-the-Virgin,

A PEAL OF 5088 GLASGOW SURPRISE MAIJOR
Tenor 14 cwt. 2 gr. 4 Ib. in F sharp.

Barwell B. Dibben.. .Treble Frederick R. Scott 5
Brian Bladon ... 2 John D. Rock 6
David A. S. Hawkins . 3 Robin G. Leale.. 7
Witliam S, Deason.. 4 John R. Mayne Tenor

Arranged and Conducted by John R. Mayne.
First peal in the method by all the band, and for the Society.
IPSWICH, SUFFOLK.
THE SUFFOLK GUILD.
On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 2 Hours and 48 Minutes,
At the Church of St. Margaret,
A PEAL OF 5040 GRANDSIRE TRIPLES
Holt’s Original Tenor 14J cwt.

*Roger K. Whittell Treble George E. Symonds .. 5
Keith Whittell 2 James Bennett . 6
*R. John Munnings 3 *Ernest V. Blake .. 7
eHerbert G. Jillings 4 *Ernest G. Pearce .. .. Tenor

Conducted by George E. Symonds.
First peal of Grandsire Triples.

SIX BELL PEALS

WORMINGFORD, ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, May 25, 1959, in 2 Hours 39 Minutes,
At the Church of St. Andrew,
A PEAL OF 5040 MINOR
Being two extents each of Oxford T. B.. Kent T. B. and Plain Bob

and one extent of St. Clement's Bob Tenor 8 cwt.
David E. Culham Treble Urban W. WitdNey

A. Edward Leggett 2 Donald L. Mills 5
eBarry E. Gibbons, .. 3 Roy Duesbury Tenor

Conducted by Urban W. Wildney
*First peal in four methods.

LAXFIELD, SUFFOLK.
THE SUFFOLK GUILD.
On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 2 Hours and 54 Minutes,
Ai the Church of Al Saints.
A PEAL OF 5040 PLAIN BOB MINOR
Being seven different extents. Tenor 15 cwt. 1 qr. 9 Ib. in4F

Edwin T. Chapman .. Treble H. Wittiam Barrett
John W. Blythe .. .. 2 *Ralph -Bickers 5
Charles Bailey 3 Trevor N. J. Bailey Tenor

Conducted by John W. Biythe.
« First peal of Minor.
SHERBURN-IN-ELMET, YORKSHIRE.
THE YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Sat., June 13, 1959, in 2 Hours and 59 Minutes,
At the Church of All Saints,
A PEAL OF 5040 MINOR
Being two extents of Oxford Treble Bob, two of Kent Treble Bob, one
of St. Clement’s and two of Plain Bob. Tenor 15 cwt.

cAlan Grundy ...cocvvuenenns Treble John Potts .. 4
Kenneth B. Sissons .. 2 *Ronald R. Warford .. 5
Mrs. J. Render . 3 Alan Sheppard .. .. Tenor
Conducted by Alan Sheppard.
 First peal in four methods.
HANDBELL PEAL
BARROW-UPON-SOAR, LEICESTERSHIRE.
THE LEICESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Thurs., June 11 1959 in 2 Hours and 3 Minutes,
Melton Ro
A PEAL OF 5056 PLAIN BOB MAJOR
Derek M. Sawyer .. .. 1—2 1 John A. AcCcres .. 5—6
Ernest M 0rris .. 3—4 | B. stedman Payne .. .. 7—8

Composed by E. M. Atkins. Conducted by John A. Acres.
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RINGERS’

NEWARK

The first stop on the Newark Parish Church
Society’s outing on June 20th was at Hunting-
don, where St. Mary’s Church bells were rungi
to Standard methods with rounds and cal
changes for the many learners. At Cambridge
the beautiful bells of the R. C. Church of Our
Lady and English Martyrs were soon rolling out
to Stedman and Grandsire Triples. Another fine
ring was at St. Andrew’s, Old Chesterton, and
the final visit was to St. Mary’s Eato\r}v SECOE.

ST. MARY’S PORTSEA

Because of the long draught the bells of St.
Swithins, East Grinstead, proved difficult for
some members of St.Mary’s Portsea tower on
their outing on June 13th. Methods rung were
Grandsire, Stedman, Cambridge, Plain Bob,
with some Rounds for the less experienced.
Then on to St. Peter’s, Tunbridge Wells for
Rounds, Grandsire, Stedman, London and Sup-
erlative.

The journey continued with stops at All
Saints, ~Maidstone, and S.S.Peter and Paul,
Headcorn.

L. D. D.

TAMWORTH

A Cotswold tour formed the outing of the
bellringers of St. Edith’s Church, Tamworth.
The journey took in Bourton-on-the-Water,
where the party lunched and enjoyed some good
ringing; Northleach; Cirencester, where young-
er members took part in Stedman, Grandsire
and Bob Royal; and Tewkesbury Abbey, where
a pleasant hour was spent on the 12 bells.

THE RINGING WORLD

OUTINGS

HURST, BERKS

When the ringers of St. Nicholas Church,
Hurst, set out on their outing on June 13th
they made firstly for Baldock, Herts; on to St.
Neots for lunch, but unforunately no ringing
at the parish church. However, a walk brought
the party to St. Mary’s Eynsbury to enjoy
some Doubles and Minor on the anti-clockwise
six. At St. Mary’s Huntingdon, the bells were
not found in the best of condition.

The next stop was at Wellingborough, where,
after tea, ringing took place on the grand
eight of All Hallows’ Church. The final tower
visited was that of Woburn, Beds., where the
Rev. C. E. Wigg, Master of the Oxford Guild,
was amongst those to join the party in Stedman

.C.

Triples. B.C

MAIDSTONE GRAMMAR SCHOOLS

Twenty-six members and friends of the
Maidstone Grammar Schools’ Society had a
coach tour in East Kent on June 13th. Towers
visited were Smarden, Brookland (where calls
were made by signalling with a handkerchief),
Lyminge, Chilham and Little Chart.

BARNSLEY SOCIETY

Two coaches took Barnsley District members
to Loughborough Bell Foundry for the annual
outing on July 4th. Mr. J. Fidler and Mr.
Marcon conducted the party round the foundry
and to the bell chamber.

After lunch at Loughborough, Copt Oak,
Grantham and Tuxford were visited. Thanks
are due to Mr. Noel F. Moxon who organised

the outing.
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ASHSTEAD, SURREY

Ashstead ringers and a few more experienced
ringers from neighbouring towers spent a
successful day in Berkshire and Oxfordshire on
June sth.

Rin%ing on the anti-clockwise eight at Benson-
on-Thames played havoc with at least one ring-
er’s idea of Stedman Triples. The bells at East
Hagbourne were also enjoyed before lunch at
Harwell. After ringing there the paily pro-
ceeded to Blewbury, another fine eight, and
Goring-on-Thames a light eight.

The last stop, and probably the best ringing,
was at Sonning-on-Thames.

GUILDFORD

Towers in East Surrey, East and West Sussex
were chosen for the outing of Holy Trinity
(Guildford) Society on June 27th. A party of
28 ringers, wives and children set out for
Godstone; Maresfield, where a ground floor
ring was sampled; Southover, for a pleasant
ring of ten bells including some excellent
courses of Stedman Caters; Ditchling, where
there are two or three inside bells lighter than
the treble, the sixth being lightest of all;
Henfield for tea and Mr. Frank Cruttenden’s
hand bells; Arundel; Petworth ; and so home.

After the first tower, the coach driver
accompanied the party at each stop.—A recruit?

NORTH WEALD, ESSEX

Four car loads from North Weald, Essex, had
an enjoyable outing on June 27th. First stop
was the heavy-going six at Watton-at-Stone
followed by the very light ring at Tewen. After
tea at Hertingfordbury the five at St. Mary’s
Church were sampled. Here the noise was
terrific. Essendon were voted the best bells of
the day. Ringing finished at Widford.

John Taylor & Co.

LOUGHBOROUGH

The LEADING BELL FOUNDERS
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BELFRY GOSSIP

The collection at the communion service
at the central council meeting amounted to
£7 18s. This sum the vicar of Christ Church,
Southport, has given to the Rev. R. D. St
John Smith, president of the Lancashire Ass-
ociation, for some bell or tower restoration in
Lancashire. The president has given this to the
Tower Restoration Fund of the Church of All
Souls’, Bolton and has received a grateful
letter and receipt from the Church Treasurer.

Mr. E. F. Gibbard of Winslow, has retired
after 29 vyears as honorarg secretary and
treasurer of the Central Bucks Branch of the
Oxford Diocesan Guild. Rin(?ing members have
increased from 35 to 150 during that period.
In appreciation of his services, he was elected
first vice-president of the branch. Mr. D. G.
Wheeler 1s the new honorary secretary and
treasurer.

Almost equal numbers of Hertfordshire and
Bedfordshire ringers attended a northern dis-
trict meeting of the Herts County Associat-
ion at Pirton on July 4th. Gravenhurst and
Meppershall towers were visited in the evening.

Work is in hand to provide two new trebles
for St. Mary’, Hendon, to complete the octave.
The band, under the leadership of Miss Ruth
Foreman, have in the past two years collected
something like £450 for the work.

Mr. E. T. Chapman has resigned his appoint-
ment as Eastern Branch Ringing Master of
the Norwich Diocesan Association on leaving
the district. Miss Doris Lidbetter is the new
master.

Thirty ringers attended the Chertsey District
meeting at Thames Ditton on June 27th. when
three new members for the Guildford Diocesan
Guild were elected.

Todmorden ringers who recently visited Moss-
ley, Roughtown,. published as an unringable
six, found that the only trouble was that the
tenor ran dry every 200 changes. On being
stood for five minutes another 200 changes
were possible. The steel six at Stainland, also
visited, were in a poor condition, but rounds
were rung. A new wooden staircase impeded
the ringing of the treble and fifth. The tenor
wheel was very insecure. One bell was com-
pletely corroded through at one point, but the
fittings on the headstock and bearings appeared
to be in good order.

The original ring of five at St. Peter’s Church,
Alton, Staffs, have been recast and augmented
to eight by Messrs. John Taylor and Co. at
a cost of £4,000. Of this sum, Alton ringers
have raised £2,700. An open day will be held
here on August 22nd.

A visitor from Groton, U.S.A. attended the
Oxford Guild Festival on July 4th. On the top
table were a couple of “youngsters”—Mr.W.
H. B. Wilkins (88) and Mr. T. Trollope (98)
both vice-presidents of the Guild. It was an
excellent day.

Mr. Roger Savory of 32 Thornbury Avenue,
Southampton, is the new General Secretary of
the Winchester and Portsmouth Diocesan
Guild. Central Council representatives are Miss
M. Beamish, the Rev. K.W.H. Felstead, Messrs
F. W. Rogers and R. A. Reed.

The annual dinner of the Society of Royal
Cumberland Youths has been fixed for Feb.
6th, 1960.

Mr. Caleb Fenn inquires which bells were
first used to broadcast a service and what was
the time allowed for the ringing.

THE WHITECHAPEL BELL FOUNDRY

ESTABLISHED

MEARS & STAIN BANK
BISHOPSGATE 2599.

34, WHITECHAPEL ROAD
LONDON, E.t.



July 24-31, 1959

THE RINGING WORLD

DEATH OF MR. ALFRED H. PULLING

With deep regret we record the passing on
July eth. of Mr. Alfred Henry Pulling, of 144.
Woodside Road, Guildford, aged 78 years.
Mr. Pulling was taken ill the previous Friday
and was attended to by Mrs. Pulling until his
peaceful passing. They were married on Sept.
26th. 1904, at Warboys, Huntingdonshire, and
had a happy married life of nearly 55 years.
Mr. Pulling conducted his last touch, of Sted-
man_Triples at Holg Trinity Cathedral Church
on Sunday, June 28th, a tower he had served
with great faithfulness for 67 years.

Alfred Pulling will go down in history as one
of the great ringers of this age. Not only did
he amass a large total of 1492 peals, but by
his ability as a leader and “conductor will be
remembered by ringers in all parts of the
country. He had rung handbells in the Market
Square at Dunkirk, at Menin Gate, and was
one of the party of handbell ringers at the
Tomb of he Unknown Warrior at Westminister
Abbey in the early 1920%.

FIRM DISCIPLINARIAN

Born at Petworth, Sussex, Mr. Pulling came
to Guildford when he was very young and
treasured in his home was a gold medal awarded
to him for having attended Holy Trinity School
for ten consecutive years during_which time he
was neither absent” nor late. This character-
forming habit influenced him in after life, for
Alfred throughout life was a firm disciplinarian,
both personally and among those he had in
charge. This was, in particular, exemplified at
the Royal Grammar School, Guildford, where
he was caretaker for 41 years, in the belfry of
Holy Trinity Church and when he was conduct-
ing a peal. When ringing either in practice or in
a peal only one voice was allowed in the belfry
—that of the conductor. But afterwards there
was extreme friendliness and sharp words were
forgotten. Memories of the writer go back to
the hour spent between Sunday service ringing
at the Grammar School, either on the lawn or
in the common room.

When Alfred Pulling started to ring at 13,
Holy Trinity was a stoney tower. Change ringing
was not introduced until 1899 with Mr. Ben.
Chorley, as the conductor of the band. Ringing
with Mr. Pulling as a boy was Mr. A. Henry
Hutton and these two have had a life-long
connection with the church and in peal ringing
activities. Mr. Hutton rang in the peals for his
wedding and for his silver wedding and also
in a_quarter for his gholden wedding. Infirmity
to his arms prevents him now from ringing.

SOME OF HIS PEALS

Perhaps of his peals the most conspicuous
was 19,738 Stedman Caters in hand rung on
August 31st, 1912, at Guildford, in 9 hours
32 minutes which he conducted and was his
300th. peal This record length was the culmin-
ation of a series of long peals in hand of Sted-
man Caters of 7028, 7777 and 14031. Later in
1948 he rang 9999 changes in the same method.

Of his long lengths on tower bells there were
10,025 Stedman Caters at Haslemere in 6 hours
32 minutes on Febuary 28th., 1931; 10,432
Treble Bob Major at Warnham, on April 29th.,
1933; 7392 Double Norwich Court Bob Major
at Chiddingfold on Febuary 2nd., 1907 and
9600 Double Dublin at Guildford on April 6th.,
1931. Perhags the peal he treasured most was
that of Cambridge Surprise Major at St. Olave’s
Hart Street on February 15th., 1936, in which
each member of the band had rung 1000 peals.
In that band were James George 1, George R.
Pye 2, W. H. Fussell 3, John H. Cheesman 4,
Frank Bennett 5 James E. Davis 6,-George
Williams (conductor) 7, A. H. Pulling 8. His
first peal was rung on October 14th., 1899, at
Hawley, Hants; his first as conductor on Oct.
1st., 1902 at Guildford ; his 1000th. at Warnham
on June 7th., 1930; and his last Lyme Surprise,
at Guildford, on November 22nd., 1954.

Mr. Pulling’s first Guild was the Winchester,
when Surrey was one of the Districts, and he
represented this Guild, on the Central Council
from 1914—27. With the formation of the
Guildford Diocesan Guild, of which he was a
vice-president, he was elected to the Central
Council in 1928 and was one of their represen-
tatives until 1956. He was then elected an
honorary member of the Council. Mr. Pulling
took his work for the Council very seriously
and was a member of the Standing Committee.
His last public speech was at the Southport
Council meeting when he pointed out that “The
Ringing World” could only be produced as
a hobbz.

Mr. Pulling was a member of many ringing
associations and was a staunch member of
the Society of Royal Cumberland Youths.

THE FUNERAL

The funeral service at Holy Trinity Cathedral
Church on July 10th. was conducted by the
Precentor (the Rev. Paul Faunch). Touches of
Stedman Triples were rung with the bells half-
muffled previous to the service and afterwards
the whole pull and stand for 78 times. Cremat-
ion was at Woking and after the service a plain
course of Grandsire Triples was rung by Mrs.
F. |. Hairs 1—2, Mrs. P. J. Staniforth 3—4,
Mr. Walter Ayre 5—e6, Mr. F. |. Hairs 7—s.

There was a large attendance of ringers at
the service. These included Mr. and Mrs. E. A.
Barnett (representing the Central Council), Mr.
and Mrs. F. I. Hairs, Mr. W. Ayre, Mr. and
Mrs. F. E. Hawthorne and A. W. J. Butler
(representing the Society of Royal Cumberland
Youths). Mr. and Mrs. C. H. Kippin and Mr.
R. L. Kippin (Southampton), Mr. and Mrs.
A. Harman, Mr. and Mrs. R. H. Hutton, Mr.
and Mrs. F. Bowden (Haslemere).

Messrs C. Denyer (Master Guildford Dio-
cesan Guild), S. E. Russell ﬁSecretary Guildford
Diocesan Guild), F. E. Collins (Master, Surrey
Association) E. Brag?, ( Master Farnham
District Ringers), G. Pullinger (Winchester and
Portsmouth Guild of Ringers), H. N. Pitstow,
G. Gilbert (Burnham&, L. Stilwell (Worthing),
J. Brackley (Old Woking), S. Petter (Worples-
don), F. "Cherryman (pirbright), R. Overy
(Haywards Heath), H. V. Young, A. H. Winch,
G. Marriner (Leatherhead), F. Oakshott (Ep-
som), E. G. L. Coward (Dorking), J. Cooper
(Ashford, Kent), J. Calder, G. L. Grover, F.
Ledger,

esdames Russell, Newbrook, Rosevear,
Hazelden, (representing Mr. A, C. Hazelden),
Hurst, Robinson, Staniforth (Leicester), and
Collins (representing S. Nicolas, Guildford
Rin%ers). )

The Misses Avenell (Worplesdon), B. Jupp.

The Holy Trinity Society, Guildford was
represented by Messrs. C. A. Hopper, T. Mark

hite, T. W, White, E. R. Warner and Supt.
R. J. C. Hagley.

There were also present representatives of
the Grammar School and Old Boys.

Wreaths were sent from the Central Council
of Church Bell-ringers, the Guildford Diocesan
Guild, the Winchester and Portsmouth Diocesan
Guild, the Society of Royal Cumberland
Youths, Holy Trinity Cathedral, Guildford
Society of Change Ringers and the Old Guild-
fordians Association. There were also a number
pf personal tributes.

BARNSLEY DISTRICT SOCIETY

Seven towers were represented when the
Society held its first meeting at Bradfield, Nr.
Sheffield on July 11th. Anthony Stables (Caw-
thorne), Dianna Stanriffe and Catherine Robin-
son (Tankersley) were elected as members.

The next meeting will be held at Ackworth,
Nr. Pontefract. Early reminiscences of Brad-
field were given by Mr. John Bearley. Canon
A. King, who presided, was elected a life
member of the Society.
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OBITUARY
MR. D. GARDINER

We regret to announce the death on June
15th of Mr. Douglas Gardiner, aged 41. ‘Doug’
as he was known to all, was once a very popular
figure in the Margotsfield Branch. He started
ringing in 1934 and was elected Secretary of
the Bristol Rural Branch in 1945, a position he
held for two years. He gave up ringing in 1950.
The funeral service was at Margotsfield Church,
conducted by the vicar, the Rev. W.F.Beard,
and followe be/ cremation. A Quarter Peal of
Grandsire Triples was rung half muffled, con-
ducted by F. Skidmore, Master of Gloucester
and Bristol Diocesan Association.

MR. V. JONES

The death occurred suddenly on June 13th,
at the age of 84, Mr. V. Jones, of Coleshill,
Berkshire. He was a keen ringer until the 1939-
45 war, often ringing at Faringdon. Mr. F.H.
Whipp represented the Oxford Diocesan Guild
at the funeral.

On July 3rd the bells of Coleshill were rung
in his memory. That day the Church was re-
opened after being closed for five years for
major repairs.

MR. J. LEATHERBARROW

The death of Mr. Joseph Leatherbarrow, a
past vice-president of the Lancashire Association
occurred on June 9th at his home in the village
where he was born.

Aged 71, he had been captain and tower
keeper at Newchurch Parish Church for 48 years
and was instrumental in the introduction of
change ringing at Newchurch when a new
band was formed after the building of a new
church on the site of one burnt down in 1904.
Previously only call changes had been rung.

Mr. Leatherbarrow was appointed captain,
and, after three-months’ hard work with lashed
bells, he had them ringing 720 on open bells.
The band, which included his father, brother
and son, became well known in the district for
their method ringing and perfect striking.

He took a great pride in the tower and it
was a well known fact that any visiting band
would never find a broken rope, and would
always find the tufts at the correct height. He
rang over 100 peals, many of which he con-

ducted, and took part in the record peal of
Oxford T. B. at Heptonstall. Ill-health brought
about his retirment from ringing four years

ago.
A memorial peal was rung in tribute. SX.

MR. JOHN LEWIN

A former captain of Cranford, Northants,
ringers, Mr. John Lewin (Jack) died on June
20th after a painful illness. He was aged 78.
Except for a break during the 1914-18 war, he
served with the choir as well as being a regular
service ringer on Sundays for many years. He
was a member of the Parochial Church Council,
and a free life member of Peterborough Dio-
cesan Guild of Ringers.

As a tribute to his memory, on the evening
of June 25th, 720 Plain Bob half muffled was
rung by the Sunday Service band. C.H.N.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND
YOUTHS

At their quarterly meeting at Chipping Barnet
the Society of Royal Cumberland Youths elected
the following new members:- Miss Elizabeth
Yardley, Birmingham; Miss Ivy Roe, Farnsfield,
Notts; Messrs. C. A. Pound, Liss; C. M.
Smith and A. J. Strathee, Sutton Coldfield; J.
H. Allen, Wolverhampton; C. R. S. Couss-
maker, Milford-on-Sea; B. J. Willis, Finchley.
The next quarterly meeting will be held on
Sept. 12th.
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GREAT YARMOUTH BELLS
BLESSED

The largest congregation seen in Great
Yarmouth for some time, estimated at 3000,
assembled on June 21st when the Dean of
Norwich blessed and named the new ring of
13, prior to them being taken up into the
tower. This was also the civic thanksgiving
for the granting of Yarmouth’s first charter,
750 years ago

Handbells were rung to Grandsire Caters
as the B.B.C. commentator described the
scene. The procession of Magistrates, Mayor,
Corporation and Clergy, with colours carried
by various units and the Mother’s Union,
entered the Church, and the opening hymn
was sung unaccompanied.

After prayers and lesson, the Dean app-
roached the bells, which had been hung on
a low scaffolding beneath the tower, and
named them. The treble is named Herbert
after the first Bishop of Norwich who first
built Yarmouth Church; the 2nd is Walter,
after a Bishop who enlarged it; the 3rd, Felix,
after the first Christian missionary to East
Anglia; the flat 6th, Gabriel, after him who
announced the Saviour’s coming. The others
are named after the nine churches in Yarmouth
parish — Luke, John, James, Peter, Paul,
George, Andrew, Thomas and Nicholas.

The bells were sounded during the service
by a specially trained group of musicians,
and the remaining hymns were accompanied
by them. As the processions left the Church
the ‘orchestra’ played the Bach quarter chimes.

WINCHESTER AND
PORTSMOUTH DIOCESAN
GUILD

Members from all parts of the Guild’s area
were welcomed by the master (Mr. F.W.Rogers)
who presided at the annual meeting held in
Cathedral House, Portsmouth on July 4th.
Silent tributes were paid to three members who
had died— Miss Sparshott, Christchurch; Mr.
H. Newnham, New Alresford; Mr. S. J.
Sanders, Twyford.

The reports and accounts had been previous-
I% circulated but verbal reports were given by
the Rev. K. W. H. Felstead (library) and Mr.
C.H.Kippen (Central Council). The new rules
to come into force next January were adopted,
an admendment to increase members’ subscrip-
tions to 5/- being defeated.

Officers elected were: Master, Mr. F. W.
Rogers, general secretary Mr. R. Savory, 32
Thornbury Avenue, Southampton; treasurer,
Miss M. ‘Beamish; Central Council Represent-
tatives, Miss Beamish, Rev. K. W. H. Felstead;
Messrs F. W. Rogers and R. A. Reed.

W hitchurch was selected for the next annual
Jm?eting to be held on the first Saturday in
uly.

A short service in the Cathedral, conducted
by the Rev.E.Lowman followed. Afterwards
at the buffet tea in the Cathedral House, the
Master presented Mr. George Pullinger with
a portable radio set and a cheque in appreciat-
ion of his services to the Guild which he joined

in 1908. He is shortly leaving. Offices Mr.
Pullinger has held have been peal recorder,
assistant general secretary, general secretary
Six years%, master (six years), vice-president
since 1955), Central Council representative
since 1932), Southampton District Secretary
16 years). Taken by surprise Mr. Pullinger
thanked the members for their gift and men-
tioned his early ringing days with Mr. George

Williams who “either pushed you on or pushed
you out’.

THE RINGING WORLD

ST. DAVID’S DIOCESAN GUILD
ANNUAL FESTIVAL

The 13th Annual Festival of the St. David’s
Diocesan Guild was held at St. David’s, on
Saturda%/ June 13th. The Bishop (the Rt. Rev.
R. Richards) and the Dean called in at the
Bell Tower and spent half an hour with the
ringers before attending the service at the
Cathedral. The Dean (the Very Rev. T. J.
Jenkins) officiated and the address was given
by the Bishop. After the service the members
were entertained to tea, given by the ringers’
wives and ladies of the Cathedral. This was
very much enjoyed by 84 people, and a hearty
vote of thanks was extended to them by the

Master, Mr. Gwyn Thomas of Tenby.
The usual business meeting followed, at
which the Bishop, who is president of the

Guild, presided.

The meeting was opened by the Master, and
a token of respect was paid to two honorary
members who had died since the last meeting,
Mr. David Francis of Llanelly and Mr.
Williams of Llanstephan.

The following officers were elected :

Master of the Guild, Mr. Gwyn Thomas,
Tenby; secretary, Mr. C.H.Hawkins, Llanelly;
treasurer, Mr.  W.P. E. Sage, Burry Port;
ringing master, Mr. R. Scudamore, Llandilo;
auditor, Mr. B. H. Rees, Burry Port; Central
Council Representative, Mr. C. H. Hawkins,
Llanelly.

Mr. Chris Hawkins, C.C.Representative for
St. Davids’ Guild, made a strong appeal to
members to buy The Ringing World’, to in-
crease its circulation, which would help to keep
it at its present price.

Sunday Service ringing in the Diocese was
fairly good, but there was still that old stigma
of ringers ringing for service and not staying
to service, it was said.

The Secretary stated that he was not happy
about the future of the bells in the Diocese,
unless some servicing or re-hanging was done
soon. After a very long discussion, the Bishop
advised efforts to get the matter discussed with
the Standing Committee of the Diocese, but
reminded the meeting that the incumbent of
the parish concerned was the right person to
approach on the matter.

The treasurer presented a cheque for £10 to
the Dean towards the Sound Proving Project
which will be carried out in the future, and
a Grant of £5 was agreed upon towards the
Bishop Havard Memorial Fund.

When told that the Dr. Prosser Shield,
which is used for competition in the Guild
needed a new set of lapels, the Bishop readily
defrayed the cost. For this kind gesture he was
thanked by the Master of the Guild. The Bishop
also invited the Guild to the Palace for their
annual meeting in 1960, which was readily
accepted.

A very hearty vote of thanks was extended
to the Bishop and to the Dean of St. David’s
for having the Guild at St. David's.

BEVERLEY AND DISTRICT SOCIETY

Two new members were elected at the
Beverley and District Society meeting at Rise
on June 13th, which was attended by 25
members.  Wives of local ringers served an
excellent tea. A wide variety of Doubles
methods was rung.

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION

Many ringers and friends attended the St
Albans District meeting at Wheathampstead.
The meeting wished Mr. George W. Deben-
ham a speedy recovery from his accident and
hoped he would be back ringing again.
The Rector was thanked for taking the ser-
vice and the ladies for a splendid tea.
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MORE BELFRY GOSSIP

Peal withdrawn.—Mr. Alan R. Pink with-
draws the peal of Spliced Cambrid%e nd Sup-
erlative rung at Olney on Jan 26th., 1952.

The peal of Cambridge Surprise Royal at
Wakefield Cathedral on June 20th. is the first
in the tower since the first ever in 1822

The parents of Miss Hilda Snowden cele-
brated their diamond wedding on June 27th.
Hilda conducted a peal of Yorkshire in honour
of the event on Halstead bells on June 27th.

The composer of the peal of Bristol Surprise
Major rung at Longley was Arthur Knights and
not W. E. Critchley. see page 417.

The first peal of Double Norwich Court Bob
Caters for the Norwich Diocesan Association
was rung at St. Peter Mancroft, Norwich on
June 23rd.

Mr. William Beard has completed 50 years
as a ringer at Ruardean, Gloucester. A peal of
Grandsire Triples was rung in honour of the
occasion on June 20th.

The 80th. birthday of Mr. W. J. Prescott,
tower master of Bath Abbey was honoured by
a quarter of Gandsire Caters on the Abbey
bells on June 21st.

Mr. P. Minchin was elected “Ringing World”
representative  for the Swindon branch at a
meeting at Bishopstone on June 13th. Miss
L. J. Hawes of Stamford Hill was elected a
life member of the Gloucester and Bristol
Association.

The University of Bristol Society rang a
peal of Grandsire Cinques at St. Laurence
Church, Reading on June 27th. A peal of
Stedman Cinques, conducted by Frank B.
Ll;]fkin was rung at High Wycombe on July
4th.

An Ashstead all ladies band, five of whom
are still at school, rang a course of Grandsire
Triples on June 18th.—and this in a tower
where the probability of work on bells and
frame has restricted ringing to Thursday
practice and Sunday Service.

The Northern District of the Surrey Asso-
ciation held their striking competition in sum-
mer instead of autumn this year. For the second
successive year St. John’s Croydon had least
faults for their touch of 252 Grandsire Triples
and second were St. Mary’s, Beddington, who
rang Stedman Triples. Mr. C. H. Kippin was
the judge, with Mrs. Parrott acting as marker.

Cambridge University Guild had an outin
on June 9th. in the Bedford area: six cars an
two motor-cycles conveyed the party. A gremlin
was busy attacking the secretary’s motor-cycle,
the president’s car and also the aged Austin
seven. Ringing took place at Goldington,
Willington, Felmersham and Kempston. " Jim
Taylor is to be congratulated on his faultless
organisation.

BEDFORDSHIRE RINGERS’
MONDAY

Parts of Leicestershire and Staffordshire
were visited on Whit Monday by a party of
Bedfordshire ringers, the outing being ar-
ranged by Keith Flemming.

After ringing at Lutterworth and Burbage,
lunch was taken in Tamworth, followed by
ringing at St. Editha’s. When Rugely was
reached, 30 minutes late, due to Whit Monday
celebrations at Lichfield, the Vicar’s wife said
she knew nothing about the belfry key, so
this tower was missed. The good eight at St.
Modwen’s, Burton-on-Trent, was a compensa-
tion. Wigston Magna and Bosworth tower
were visited after tea. Ringing during the
day was of a good standard and a variety
of methods was rung.

WHIT

WINTERBOURNE, GLOS.—On June Sth, 1,260
Grandsire Doubles : E. Anstey 1, J. Ferris 2. D.
Eiliott 3, T. J. Jefferies 4. H. T. Ferris (cond.) 5.
F. Lewis 6. Rung half-muffled in memoriara Susan
Wallers, baby daughter of Mr. T. T. Walters (lower
captain) and Mrs. Walters.
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NOTICES

Scale of Charges
Meetings: 3/6 (minimum) for 30 word*, after-
wards lid. a word. Eacb additional insertion
half charge.
Other Notices: 4/- (minimum) for 36 words,
afterwards 1jd. a word.
Displayed: 6/6 per single column inch.

BIRTHS

ARTHUR.—On Sunday, July 5, 1959, at
the General Hospital, Newcastle upon Tyne,
to Margaret, wife of Kenneth Arthur, a son,
Adrian Kenneth. 4648

SEMMENS.—On July 17, 1959. at 52,
Belle Vue Grove, Middlesbrough, to Barbara,
(nee Knee) and Peter Semmens, a daughter.

ENGAGEMENT

HOBBS—WATERFIELD.—The engage-
ment is announced between Riehard, younger
son of Mr and Mrs. E. C, Hobbs, of Retford,
Notts., and Valerie Anita, youngest daughter
of Mr. and Mrs. J. E. Waterfield, of Retford,
Notts. 4658

RETURN THANKS

Mrs. A. H. Pulling, of 144, Woodside Road,
Guildford, returns sincere thanks for the many
letters of sympathy and the beautiful flowers
sent in her recent bereavement 4662

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Philip G. K. Davies has now left London.
Address (with new Postal District) is 39, South-

down Crescent, Cheadle Hulme, Cheadle,
Cheshire. Phone: Hulme 2574- 4680
PERSONAL

MARRIAGE THRO' SOCIAL INTRODUC-
TIONS.—The only social service of its kind en-
joying the warm approval of both Clergy and
Press. It is completely confidential and operates
throughout Great Britain. Interesting free
brochure under plain sealed cover from The
Bournemouth Bureau, 176, Old Christchurch
Road, Bournemouth. 2731

HANDBELLS WANTED

A SET OF SIX OR EIGHT HANDBELLS,
in good condition. Write, stating size and

rize to: Mr. Ellis, 108 Rosemount Drive,

carborough, Ontario, Canada. (Postage will

be paid). 4612
MISCELLANEOUS

TO LET FOR HOLIDAYS,-15 ft., four
berth coach built caravan, to tow or on the
farm  Reasonable to careful tenants. Write
for details.—Johnstone, Hole Farm, Highamp-
ton, Beaworthy, N. Devon. 4671

ESSEX ASSOCIATION—Padges now
available from all District Secretaries —F,V.C.

UNIVERSITIES ASSOCIATION.—AnN-
nual tour Aug. 8-15. Could anyone wishing to
come who has notreceived a circular write at
once stating for which nights accommodation
is required.—D, J. Roaf. Trinity College.
Cambridge 4677

PEAL CARDS & QUARTER PEAL CARDS
can now be ordered at 5s. a set of 12, post free
(minimum charge). Order and remittances must
be sent with peal report. For quarter peals
write separate copy in same style as peals.

TOWER CLOCKS

NEW
REPAIRS AND CONVERSIONS OF

HAND WOUND TO ELECTRIC WINDING

INSTALLATIONS OF ALL TYPES

THE RINGING WORLD

MEETINGS
ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.—Ely
District.—Meeting, Burwell, Saturday, Aug.
1. Bells (8) 3.45 p.m., tea 5 p.m,—D. F.

Murfet, Dis Sec. 4664

GUILDFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—
Chertsey District). — LADIES GUILD
Southern District). — Meeting at Chobham,

aturday August 1st. Bells (8) 3 p.m. Service
4.30. Names for tea by previous Wednesday
to Mr. R. Collins, he Mount Cottage,
Mimbridge, Chobham. 4615
KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Ton-
bridge District.—Meeting at Shipbourne on
Saturday, August 1st. Bells (6), 3 p.m., ser-
vice 4.30 p.m., tea 515 p.m. Names for tea
by Wednesday July 29th to Mr. J. Beach,
3, New Cottages, Shipbourne, Nr. Tonbrigé;leé

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Black-
burn Branch.—The next branch meeting at

Accrington, Aug. 1. Ringing 3p.m Tea5.
Cups of tea provided. Meeting to follow.—
Charles Blakey, branch secretary. 4670

SALISBURY DIOCESAN GUILD.—De-
vizes Branch.—Evening meeting, Saturday,
Aug., 1, Corsley, Bells (6) 530 p.m.. service
6 pm --E. J. Hitchins, 136, Bradley Road,
Trowbridge, Wilts. 4675

SELBY AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.—
Monthly meeting, Carlton-juxta-Snaith on
Saturday, August 1st. Bells (6) 2.30 p.m.
Service 4.30 p m.  Please provide own food,
cups of tea only available —L. M. Woodhead,
hon. sec. 9668

SUFFOLK GUILD.—Meeting Ixworth(s),
Aug. 1. Names for tea to L. Wright, Dis. Sec.

GUILDFORD GUILD (Leatherhead Dis-
trict) SURREY ASSOCIATION (Northern
District).—Joint meeting Leatherhead, Mon-
day, Aug. 3. Bells from 3, service 4.30 tea >n
Church Hall 5.15 Notifications to G. Marri-
ner, 7. Poplar Avenue. Leatherhead. More
ringing after tea. 4667

BARNSLEY DISTRICT SOCIETY. —
Meeting, Ackworth, nr. Pontefract, Saturday,

August gth. Bells 2.30 p.m. Cups of tea
provided. Please bring your own food. —
J. W. Buxton. 4581

BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION —Big-
gleswade District.—Monthly meeting, Sandy,
Saturday. Aug.. 8. Bells () 3 p.m., t.ea5 p.m.
Special methods: Double Court. Bedford De-
light. A good meeting called for.—A. Smith,
District Secretary. 4669

BEVERLEY AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.
Monthly meeting, Bridlington, Sat., Aug. 8,
Bells (8) 2.30 p m  Service 4.15. Tea 5 p.m.
Please bring own food, cups of tea only avail-
able. 4679

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
—Western District —Meeting at Redbourn,
Saturday, August 8th. Bells (6) 3 p.m. Ser-
vice 4.30. Tea 5 p.m Names for tea by
Tuesday, August 4th to Mr. J. Hobbs, 84, High
Street, Redbourn.—J. Good, dis. sec. 4657
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EAST GRINSTEAD GUILD.—Balcombe,
August gth. ITea at the ‘The Half Moon.'
Names early please.— C. A. Bassett, 3, Pendrill
Place, Wadhurst, Sussex. 4666

SUFFOLK GUILD.—Sudbury District.—
Meeting at Acton (5) on Saturday, August 8th,
Bells 2.30 p m. Service 4.45. Names for tea
to Miss R Seabrook, Clare. 4663

PETERBOROUGH DIOCESAN GUILD.
Guilsborough Branch.—Meeting Oxendon
with East Farndon, Saturday, August 8th.
Names for tea by Tuesday previous to E. M.
Thresher. Watson Road, Long Buckley. 4683

MIDDLESEX ASSOCIATION.—N. and
E. District.—Meeting at St. Andrew’s, Enfield
not Walthamstow, Saturday, August sth.
Ringing 3.45 p m., service 4.30, tea 5 and
evening ringing until 7.30 p.m. Tea only pro-
vided for those notifying by August 8th D, E.
Towers, 52, Brodie Road, Enfield, Middlesex.

SOUTHWELL DIOCESAN GUILD.—
Newark District.— Saturday, August 15th, by
kind permission of Lincoln Guild, evening
meeting Claypole. Bells (5) 6.30 to 8 30 p.m.

All welcome.—W . L' Exton, hon. sec. 4645

SURREY ASSOCIATION. — Southern
District.—Practice meeting at Old Coulsdon
(5) on Saturday, August 15th, Bells 3 p.m.
Service 4 30 p.m. Names for tea by August
12th to Miss R. Naylor, 6, Hartley Way,
Purley. 4684

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION (Southern
District. DONCASTER AND DISTRICT
SOCIETY.—Joint Meeting, Tickhill, August
15th. Bells (8) 3 p.m. Tea in Public Library
5p m., 2/6 per head. Names for tea to Mr. J.
Cannings, 15, Northgate, Tickhill, Doncaster,
by 13th. All welcome.—J. J. L, Gilbert and
G. Watson. 4678

LEICESTER DIOCESAN GUILD. —
Syston District.—Evening practice meeting,
Barkby, Saturday, August 22nd Ringing
6-8.30 p m. Learners particularly invited. 4674

CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.—Ring-
ers’ service at St. Mary-within-the-Walls,
Chester, on Sunday, September 6tn, at 6.30
p.m. Bells (8) from 4.30 until service time
and after service. All welcome. Buffet tea —
J. W. Clirke (Master), Henry O. Baker (Gen.
Secretary). 4660

CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.—Annual
Dinner at Bolland’s, Chester, on Saturday,
October 10th. Meet 5.30 p.m. Tickets 14/6
each. Accommodation limited.— Henry O.
Baker, gen. sec., 63, Parkgate Road, Chester.

4661

BURGHILL, HEREFORDSHIRE
An enjoyable day in the Cotswolds was
spent by Burghill ringers and a few friends on
June 27th. Ringing took place on the recently
rehung bells at Qued%eley, Wolton-under-Edge,
Dursley, Tetbury, where the bells have fre-
guently been broadcast, Stroud and St. Mary
e Crypt, Gloucester. Special thanks are due to

Mr. Leslie Barry for arranging the tour.

GILLETT & JOHNSTON (CLOCKS) LTD.

FACTORY No. 11
WOODSIDE PLACE, MOUNT PLEASANT

ALPERTON, WEMBLEY, MIDDLESEX.

Tel. Wembley 6572
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QUARTER PEALS

RAYLEIGH, ESSEX.—On June 14th. 1,260 Grand-
sire Triples (from Holt’s Original) : Miss E. Hatch 1,
W. Ward 2, F. May 3. F. Ely 4, J. Blower 5, R. D.
Tomlin 6, A. House 7, M. Hallett 8.

ROTHERHAM, YORKS.—On June 14th, 1,277
Grandsire Caters : R. Woodward 1, Miss M. Mills 2,

Miss E. A. Wardill 3, Mrs. N. Chaddock 4, I. Tilling
5, Miss S. Chaddock 6, J. N. D. Chaddock 7, D.
French 8. N. Chaddock (cond.) 9, P. Walker 10.

For Evensong. Rung half-muffled as a tribute of
respect to John Abbott, 76 years a chorister at this
church, who was interred the previous day.

SHERBURN-IN-ELMET, YORKS.—On May T7th,
1,440 Minor (720 Plain Bob, 720 Kent Treble Bob) :
R. Pawson 1, A. Sheppard 2, Mrs. J. Render 3.
J. Potts 4. H. Sandham 5, K. B. Sissons (cond.) 6.
For Ascension Day. Also on June 7th, 1,260 Doubles
(720 St. Clement’s, 540 Plain Bob) : H. Paul 1, A.
Sheppard 2, Mrs. J. Render 3, J. Potts 4, H. Sand-
ham 5, K. B. Sissons (cond.) 6. For Evensong.

STAGSDEN, BEDS.—On June 9th, 1,320 Minor
(720 single Oxford, 600 Plain Bob): K. Wakefield 1.
Deborah Hopkins (first of Minor *inside *) 2, J. Long
3. R. L. Piron 4, J. H. Edwards 5 R. G. Corby
(cond.) 6. A compliment to Miss Evelyn Steel, president
of the Bedfordshire Association, on the eve of her
80th birthday.

WENHASTON, SUFFOLK.—On June 8th, 144G
Minor (Kent and Plain Bob): C. J. Gibson 1, E. T.
Chapman 2, W. B. Duncan 3, A. W. Bird 4, L. E.

Etheridge 5, J. W. Blythe (cond.) 6. Rung half-
muffled in memoriam Canon R. N. Pyke, former
Vicar of Southwold, and Rural Dean.

WESTONING, BEDS.—On June 5th, 1,260 Plain

Bob Minor: E. Sharpe 1, G. M. Payne 2, T. Harris
3, K. C. Fleming 4, D. Brazier (cond.) 5, C. Mann 6.
Rung as an engagement compliment to the tenor ringer
and Miss Mary Tysoe, of Bromham, Beds.

WILLINGHAM, CAMBS.—On May 29th, 1440
Plain Bob Minor: M. Turner 1, G. Turner 2, D.
Murfet 3, C. W. Cook 4, G. A. Lucas 5. D. E. R.
Knights (cond.) 6.

Jasper Snowdon
Series

*ROPES1GHT,” 12th edition, 150 pages
1955 reprint, 3/11

‘GRANDSIRE,” by J. A. Trollope. 130

pages, 3/9

*STANDARD METHODS," 12th cUu
Letterpress 3/5 Diagrams 1957
reprint 3 18

‘SURPRISE METHODS/,’ Rev C.

D. P. Davies. 3/3

All post free on receipt of po&uil ordet
only from

MRS. WINIFRED TURNER
73, Kralthvmite Garden*,.

STAN MORE, MIDDLESEX 64, LEWISHAM PARK
WILLIAM CHURCF!
The original Leeds p WH W 2 CLOCK! 8§
Manager: R. H. Dove) & LTjj~ BANKFIELD TERRACE.
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THE RINGING WORLD

'THE WORLD'S BEST
BELLROPES

Noted for Easy Handling and
Non-stretching

Established 1820

JOHN
PRITCHARD

(ROPES) Ltd

LOUGHBOROUGH

CLOCK AND CHIMING ROPES
SPLICING AND REPAIRS
BELL MUFFLERS

Price List on Application

Pbone 2400

FROM HANDLING A BELL TO
CALLING A PEAL

The Ringers' Handbook

Detailed Instruction m the
Four Standard Methods
4 to 6 bells 31- 4 to 8 bells 4/6
Plus 4d. postage
Obtainable ONLY from Mrs. E. S. Powell,
Poleshill Cottage, Langford Budville,
Wellington, Somerset
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PUBLICATIONS

BY THE CENTRAL COUNCIL
CENTRAL COUNCIL HAND- s. d.
BOOK 2

BEGINNERS” HANDBOOK (6
for 5S.) e 10

GRANDSIRE CATERS 10

PRESERVATION OF BELLSetc. 2 0

ON CONDUCTING 10

PLAIN MAJOR METHODS ..3 &6

COMPOSITIONS OF MAJOR 3 0

DOUBLES METHODS ... 20

FOUR-WAY TABLE MINOR
METHODS i 6

CHANGE RINGING ON HAND-

LLS e 2 6

METHODS SHEETS—

*Cambridge Surﬁrlse Major 6
Double Norwich ... 6
Stedman and Grandsire Triples 6

COLLECTION OF PEALS—

Sect. Ill., Double Norwich C.B. 1 0
REPORT S.P.A.B.CONFERENCE 8
INSTRUCTIONS ON CARE OF

CHURCH BELLS (Card) 6
MODEL CODE OF RULES

Ringers' Society or Company .. 6
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PORT ON EXTENSION 10

ELECTRICAL SWITCHGEAR.
WARNING CARDS .

Post Free
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FOR PROMPT DELIVERY OF HIGH QUALITY
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ROPES
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JOHN NI1COLL
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